CITY OF RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 P.M.
RIO REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
[%@ TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2018
= CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

CALIFORNA

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

= G ISR

WELCOME . .By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City
Council are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings

often.

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), ifyou need special assistance

to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to the meeting. Assistance listening devices are now available for the hearing
impaired. Please see the City Clerk for a receiver.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION
AS FOLLOWS:

1) 2018/0807.01 — Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Initiation and/or Exposure to Potential Litigation
(Pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(2), (d)(4)
One (1) Potential Case: Facts and circumstances unknown to

adverse party

2) 2018/0807.02 - Conference with Labor Negotiator — City Manager
Employee Organizations: Rio Dell Employees Association,
Rio Dell Police Officers Association, and all Contract
Employees (Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6)

D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION
E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION

F.  RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M.



G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

H. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

L. CEREMONIAL MATTERS

J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the
item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action.
Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

K. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one
vote. The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council embers if there is anyone who
wishes to address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent
Calendar will be considered individually in the next section, “SPECIAL CALL ITEMS

1) 2018/0807.03 - Approve Minutes of July 17, 2018 Regular Meeting 1

(ACTION)
2) 2018/0807.04 - Receive and File Measure Z 4t Quarter Report (ACTION)
6
3) 2018/0807.05 - Authorize Mayor to sign a letter opposing AB 2681,
Seismic Resiliency (ACTION) 8
4) 2018/0807.06 - Approve Employment Agreement for Wastewater
Superintendent and authorize City Manager to sign
(ACTION) 14
5) 2018/0703.07 - Authorize City Manager to sign contract for Code
Enforcement Services (ACTION) 22

L. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
M. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

1) 2018/0807.08 - City Manager/Staff Update (RECEIVE & FILE) 30



N.

ADJOURNMENT

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS

1) 2018/0807.09 - Presentation - Rio Dell Library Project Update

(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 36

2) 2018/0807.10 - Presentation - DANCO Project Update (RECEIVE & FILE)

40

3) 2018/0807.11 - Presentation - Active Transportation Plan (ATP) Project

Update (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 45

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

1) 2018/0807.12 - Introduction/First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance

No. 370-2018 Approving Text Amendments Amending the
Neighborhood Center (NC) and Community Commercial
(CC) Zones, Sections 17.20.050 and 17.20.060 of the Rio
Dell Municipal Code to allow residential uses on upper
floors of mixed-use buildings (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE
ACTION) 62

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

The next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for

Tuesday, August 21, 2018 at 6:30 p.m.



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
JULY 17, 2018

MINUTES

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson called the regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council to order at 6:30
p.m.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, Councilmembers Garnes and
Marks
Absent: Mayor Wilson and Councilmember Strahan (excused)

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Chief of Police Conner, Water/
Roadways Superintendent Jensen, Wastewater
Superintendent Trainee Purvis and City Clerk Dunham

Absent: Finance Director Kerrigan and Community Development
Director Caldwell (excused)

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

Nick Angeloff provided an update on recent Chamber of Commerce business and announced
that Caltrans is trying to get the bridge open to one-way traffic for Wildwood Days with the
regular opening scheduled for mid-August. He said the Chamber would be scheduling a
ribbon-cutting event to thank them on behalf of the downtown businesses for expediting the

project.

He also reported on the purchase of fifteen (15) shooting star decorations and said they will be
going to businesses and asking them to purchase a star at $250.00 with the star to be placed
on a light pole of their choice or a building. The proceeds from those sales would then be put
back into the decorations fund to buy more lights. He said the strategic plan is to eventually
have a massive amount of lights including lights on the Eagle Prairie Bridge for the Christmas
Holidays, Fourth of July and Wildwood Days events.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Motion was made by Garnes/Marks to approve the consent calendar including approval of a
Letter of Opposition to S. 3157 to Small Cell Deployment; to receive and file the payoff of the
1978 Sewer Assessment Bonds; approve travel expense for Councilmember Garnes to attend
Annual League of California Cities Conference in Long Beach, CA on September 12-14, 2018;
and to receive and file the Check Register for June 2018. Motion carried 3-0.

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager/Staff Update




JULY 17, 2018 MINUTES
Page 2

City Manager Knopp referred to the staff update provided in the Council packet and informed
the Council of an upcoming open house on July 25, 2018 at the Veterans Memorial Building in

Fortuna related to a proposed Wind Energy Project. He noted there would be a second open
house the following day in Eureka and that councilmembers, planning commissioners, staff and

the public were invited to attend.
He commented that staff was available to answer any questions regarding the staff update.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson referred to the Public Works Water Department update and
commented on the number of water line breaks.

Julie Woodall asked about recent vehicle abatement activity.

Chief of Police Conner referred to the Police Department update and noted that over the two
week period, six (6) junk vehicle cases were closed; five (5) abated by the City and one moved

by the owner.
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS

Presentation from the Rio Dell Community Resource Center
City Manager Knopp informed the Council that Sara Faught from the Rio Dell Community
Resource Center was present to provide a brief update about the services they provide and

plans for the future.

Ms. Faught began by introducing her new Program Assistant (Mary), who she said handles all
of the food programs and plays an integral part in the Community Garden project. She
indicated that seven (7) of the ten (10) garden plots were rented out with a majority of them
done on a scholarship basis to get people to participate. She noted that they do anticipate
collecting some plot fees to help pay for maintenance and water for the gardens.

She provided a handout including a list of resources they provide and referrals to agencies
within the county. She reported that they are still running the First Five Playgroup for ages 0-5
at the Rio Dell School; the Food for People Pantry once a month, offer emergency food bags;
provide bus tickets for medical appointments; and provide various referrals and information to
help keep families healthy, happy and safe. She reported that they served 143 households
with food last month and from the period of January 1, 2018-June 30, 2018 they provided food
to 7,500 children and 7,860 adults. At a certain point, they ran out of food so relied on the
emergency food pantry. She said they do not turn anyone away who is in need of food and
because the Food for People Pantry is, only open one (1) day a month, to make it more
accessible, Mary delivers to homebound persons.

Ms. Faught added that they are currently providing the Summer Lunch Program Monday-Friday
at Fireman’s Park where they provide a meal and milk to any child under the age of 18. She



JULY 17, 2018 MINUTES
Page 3

said they are there from 12:15 — 1:00 p.m. and serve lunch to an average of 10-20 kids. After
that, they go to Scotia for 45 minutes and do the same thing, but with fewer kids.

She said as far as moving forward, they were able to come to an agreement with the Rio Dell
School District to move forward with relocating back to the school. The St. Joseph Health
System has agreed to purchase a portable office unit and they will be onsite at the school
Monday-Thursday and at the current location at 99 Wildwood Ave. on Friday.

Councilmembers thanked them for their services to the community.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson questioned the size of the portable unit and whether it would have
access to water and sewer services.

Ms. Faught explained that the unit would have a bathroom but probably not have a kitchen.
She said the unit would be large enough to provide a space for private counselling which would
be a big improvement to their existing building.

Councilmember Garnes asked where the portable unit would be located. Ms. Faught
responded that it would be located on the other side of the Rio Dell Middle School and would
allow access from the school as well as from an alternate access without going through the

school.

Presentation/Review of Miranda’s Rescue Animal Care Services Contract

City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and noted that the City has been under the current
contract with Miranda’s Rescue for animal care services for a little over two (2) years with an
automatic annual term extension although either party may cancel the contract with 60 days’
notice. He commented that Miranda’s Rescue is compensated a flat fee of $1,000 per month
regardless of the number of animals they receive from the City. In addition to dogs and cats,
they occasionally take in other animals including rabbits and even lizards. He said that two
years ago when the City entered into the contract, the goal was to accurately record data as far
as the number of animals taken in each month. He pointed out that it is outside the City’s
ability to run its own animal facility so must rely on an outside service provider.

He informed the Council that Shannon Miranda was present to discuss the contract and
address any issues he may have.

Shannon Miranda began by reminding the Council of his past requests for the City to adopt a
Breeding Ordinance. He remarked that the $1,000 monthly fee does not cover his costs to care
for the animals that come from Rio Dell. He indicated that it cost $3,000 ($250 each) to
spay/neuter the litter of puppies that were recently brought in. He also reported picking up 40
lizards and three (3) fish from one residence in the City. He reported an average of four (4)
dogs for the months of January 2018-April 2018 with an excessive amount in May and five (5)

to date for July.



JULY 17, 2018 MINUTES
Page 4

Councilmember Garnes asked for an explanation of a Breeding Ordinance.
Mr. Miranda said the ordinance would require any animal picked up to be spayed or neutered.

He said with adoption of the ordinance, the City could send out a newsletter to all residents to
inform them about the spay/neuter requirement so they may be more careful about keeping

their dogs contained.

Mr. Miranda also noted that if the City were to contract with the County for animal care services
it would cost $6,000-$7,000 per month. He reiterated that the $1,000/month fee does not cover
his cost to care for the animals from the City and asked for additional help. He said the kennel
used to hold Rio Dell's animals is not adequate and needs to be replaced suggesting the

purchase of an 8’ x 10’ kennel from The Farm Store at $1,000.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson invited public comment.

Julie Woodall asked if the other local jurisdictions have breeding ordinances.

Mr. Miranda indicated that Rio Dell would be the first city in the county.

Consensus of the Council was to agenize the matter at a future meeting to discuss potential
adoption of a breeding ordinance and possible adjustment of the monthly fee for animal care

services.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson suggested the City Attorney be available during discussion and
consideration of a breeding ordinance.

Alice Millington commented that the spay and neuter network has only done small dogs in the
past but the new facility on Myrtle Ave. will now do large dogs. The fee for spay and neutering
small dogs is $130 for males and $170 for females. She said they want to focus on Pit Bulls.
She added that the reason for focusing on a breeding ordinance rather than a spay and neuter
ordinance is because the perception of a spay and neuter ordinance is that you are taking away

a dog owner’s rights.

Shannon Miranda pointed out that Pit Bulls are not a breed for everyone. He said that
according to statistics men typically do not have a problem with having their female dogs fixed

but do with male dogs.
ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

Resolution No. 1399-2018 Supporting Conceptual Sidewalk Infill Grant Application

City Manager Knopp provided an overview of the sidewalk infill grant proposal which requests
funding for sidewalk infill along various streets to better connect neighborhoods such as
Belleview/Ogle and Riverside to the school campus. He noted that staff worked with the City




JULY 17, 2018 MINUTES
Page 5

Engineer to create the sidewalk connectivity map as presented. Staff's recommendation was to
open a public hearing for public comment, deliberate and adopt Resolution No. 1399-2018
supporting the conceptual Sidewalk Infill and Sidewalk Construction Grant Application.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson opened the public hearing to receive public comment.

Julie Woodall expressed support for the grant application and said it would be very worthwhile
to have sidewalks connect to the school and especially beneficial on Belleview Ave.

Nick Angeloff, Rio Dell-Scotia Chamber of Commerce President agreed that the project is
necessary to facilitate safe access to, from school, and throughout the city.

There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed.

Councilmember Garnes asked if this grant is part of the Active Transportation Program (ATP)
grant.

City Manager Knopp explained that the application is for the next round of ATP funding and if
approved, the project would probably be three to five years out.

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson asked Chief Conner if he supports staff's recommendation.

Chief Conner commented that he does support the project and that he had provided a letter of
support.

Motion was made by Garnes/Marks to approve Resolution No. 1399-2018 Supporting Sidewalk
Infill Grant for Improved Non-Vehicular Connectivity Between Rio Dell Elementary School
District Properties and the Neighborhoods of Rio Dell. Motion carried 3-0.

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson announced that the election cycle process has begun for the three

upcoming vacant seats on the City Council with four (4) perspective candidates picking up
nomination papers thus far. He thanked those individuals for their interest in serving.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Garnes/Marks to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 p.m. to the August 7, 2018
regular meeting. Motion carried 3-0.

Attest: Gordon Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue @9,
Rio Dell, CA 95562 DELD

[ —
e —

(707) 764-3532 =
(707) 764-5480 (fax) AL

CITY OF RIO DELL
STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
August 7, 2018

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

FROM: Brooke Kerrigan, Finance Director |

DATE: August 7, 2018
SUBJECT: Measure Z Funding 4™ Quarter Report
RECOMMENDATION

1. Review and file staff report and attached information
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The City applied for Measure Z funding for fiscal years 2015/16, 2016/17, and 2017/18 for a part-time
Police Records Technician in the Rio Dell Police Department (RDPD). This position provides departmental
administrative support, and to a smaller degree, code enforcement activities. Each quarter the City
submits a quarterly narrative to report to the County on the benefits that Measure Z funding has

provided.

Measure Z funded administrative assistance allows the RDPD doors to reliably be open four days per
week. Code enforcement logs reflect a total of 244 complaints received with 204 cases closed since July
2015. In addition, in FY 2016/17 The Humboldt County Board of Supervisors approved the use of $5,000
of Measure Z funding to be used towards abatement activities. These funds were used to tow and

dispose of a total of seventeen (17) vehicles.

ATTACHMENT S
Measure Z Quarterly Narrative Report Form —Q4 2017/18

e T S S e
Measure Z 4th Quarter Report
FY 2017/18 6



COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT — MEASURE Z
Quarterly Narrative Report Form

CITY OF RIO DELL Report Date: _June 30, 2018

Organization Name:

Contact Name: Brooke Kerrigan Phone: 707.764.3532

1. Please describe the Measure Z activities completed and/or total numbers served or reached.

The purpose of Measure Z funding is to provide clerical support in the City’s police department to support law
enforcement, nuisance abatement and code enforcement. With the added administrative support Police
Officers are able to spend more time dedicated to law enforcement activities such as 9-1-1 emergency
response, crime investigation/prosecution, drug/illegal marijuana growhouse enforcement prevention, and

other duties that serve to create a safer community for Rio Dell.

Measure Z funding is an important benefit for the City of Rio Dell. By having the Records Technician in the
Police Dept. law enforcement response times are shortened and the doors are open more often. Overall, the
community is better served by having support available in the Police Department to immediately assist the
public. Without Measure Z open doors would be sporadic and unreliable, and response times lengthened.

The Police Records Technician position has also created an effective plan towards creating a more harmonious
community through Code Enforcement. By actively responding to complaints and facilitating abatement, the
City is also enhancing the housing inventory and improving property values in the City of Rio Dell.

Code enforcement and nuisance abatement activities include animal control, building code enforcement,
tampering with City property, marijuana, noise, camping, trash, vehicle, and visual blight nuisances.

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18
SUMMARY - CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE ABATEMENT ACTIVITIES

CASES OPEN AT June 30,2018

CURRENT PRIOR PROGRAM
1STQTR [ 2ND QTR | 3RD QTR | 4TH QTR YEAR YEARS TOTAL
OPENED CASES (New) 40 7 21 29 97 147 244
CLOSED CASES (All) 42 24 11 23 100 104 204
40

During the 4™ quarter for FY 2017/18 twenty-nine (29) new code enforcement cases were received. The

majority was for vehicle nuisances (26); one (1) was for animal nuisance; one (1) was for visual blight; and one

(1) was for building/land use. Twenty-three (23) cases were closed with the majority of these for vehicle
nuisances (17) through the City’s code enforcement activities made possible through Measure Z funding.

2. What difference did Measure Z funding make in the Community and for the population you are serving?

The four day a week clerical position adds safety to the community by designating more time that an officer
can spend in the field, instead of simultaneously having to be available for active patrol and customer
assistance at the Police Department. Without Measure Z funding administrative support in the Police
Department would be lost potentially allowing victims of crime undue harm due to prolonged wait times.

3. Describe any unanticipated impacts of receiving Measure Z funding, positive or negative, not already

described above.

N/A




o et Iy OF

W R I o AL S i SN TN N YL SO T fxrepaTIe

L5 AR

675 Wildwood Avenue /R.I O
Rio Dell, CA 95562 [ﬁET,D

S —

(707) 764-3532 T

For Meeting of: August 7, 2018
M Consent Item; O Public Hearing Item

To: City Council

o
From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director(i_%;’:f,_
Through: Kyle Knopp, City Manager;/
Date: July 30, 2018
Subject: Letter Opposing AB 2681.

Recommendation:
That the City Council:
1. Authorize the Mayor to sign a letter opposing AB 2681.

Background and Discussion

The California Building Officials (CALBO) recently sent out an email to local jurisdictions
encouraging the opposition of AB 2681, Seismic Resiliency. This Bill would require Building
Departments to create an inventory of potentially vulnerable buildings within its jurisdiction,
based on age and other publicly available information. This inventory would then be submitted
to the Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) for review of compliance standards.

CALBO believes and staff concurs that adding a new system and program to an already
burdened department will create staffing and financial difficulties throughout the State. The
entire system and process created by AB 2681 is an onerous task to be passed on to local

government.

Please see the attached email and letter for more information regarding AB 2681.

Attachments:

Attachment 1: Email from CALBO regarding AB 2681.
Attachment 2: Letter opposing AB 2681.

Staff Report Opposing AB 2681



Kevin Caldwell

From:

Sent:
To:
Subject:

California Building Officials [info=calbo.org@mail45.atl11.rsgsv.net] on behalf of California
Building Officials [info@calbo.org]
Wednesday, July 11, 2018 10:17 AM

Kevin Caldwell
Legislative Outreach Alert - AB 2681 (Seismic Resiliency)

July 10, 2018 California Building Officials »

Legislative Outreach Alert - AB
2681 (Seismic Resiliency)

Member Call to Action

This year’s legislative session has been filled with building health and
safety issues that directly affect our membership. CALBO has been
closely tracking several bills, and advocating our strong position at the
State Capitol. The Legislature is currently on “summer recess” and will
reconvene in August to finish the last few weeks of session. During this
time, it would be helpful to get CALBO’s local jurisdictions involved in
these advocacy efforts and express their individual concerns with bills
that are moving through the process.

CALBO has been working on the Seismic Resiliency Initiative (SRI) for
many months, and has taken a position on the SR bills that are moving
through the Legislature. Assembly Member Nazarian (D — North
Hollywood) has introduced a measure, AB 2681, which would establish
a statewide mandate for a “potentially vulnerable buildings” inventory.
CALBO recognizes the need for seismic resiliency efforts, but does not
support a statewide mandate that does not take into consideration local
needs and regional diversity. Additionally, the bill in its current form
does not provide any secured funding for local governments. This
further concerns CALBO as building departments would be tasked with
this large undertaking with no financial support for departmental time or

administrative costs.

This bill specifically mentions areas of the state that are seismically
vulnerable, and therefore responsible for providing a local inventory to
the Office of Emergency Services (CalOES). As written, AB 2681
specifically targets % of the counties in California. The other % of the
state is less likely to be effected by seismic activity, but could still be
required to conduct the inventory based on their proximity to seismically
vulnerable areas.

ATTACHMENT 1



If your agency is interested in joining CALBO in “Opposing” this
measure, please send the attached letter template, with the required
fields updated to match your local jurisdiction’s information. AB 2681
will be heard in the Senate Appropriations Committee on August 6,
2018. To find your legislator on the Committee, use this online tool. If
your local Senator does not sit on the Appropriations Committee, feel
free to submit a letter to their office expressing your jurisdiction’s
concerns.

Step 1: Look up your local Senator

Step 2: Edit letter template with your jurisdiction’s information

Step 3: Send to your local representative or Appropriations Committee
Member and Assembly Member Nazarian’s office.

If you have any questions, please contact Katie Almand, Government
Affairs Manager.

Assembly Member Adrin Nazarian
D - North Hollywood

District 46

State Capitol, Room 4146
Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-2046

Fax: (916) 319-2146

Senate Appropriations Committee Members

Senator Anthony J. Portantino {Chair)
D - La Canada

District 25

State Capitol, Room 3086

Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-4025

Fax: (916) 651-4925

Senator Patricia Bates {Vice Chair)
R — Laguna Niguel

District 36

State Capitol, Room 305
Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-4036

Fax: (916) 651-4936

Senator Jim Beall

D — San Jose

District 15

State Capitol, Room 2082

-10-



Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916) 651-4015
Fax: (916) 651-4915

Senator Steven Bradford
D — Gardena

District 35

State Capitol, Room 2062
Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916) 651-4035
Fax: (916) 651-4935

Senator Jerry Hill

D — San Mateo

District 13

State Capitol, Room 5035
Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916) 651-4013
Fax: (916) 651-4913

Senator Jim Nielsen

R — Red Bluff

District 04

State Capitol, Room 2068
Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916) 651-4004
Fax: (916) 651-4904

Senator Scott Wiener

D — San Francisco
District 11

State Capitol, Room 4066
Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916) 651-4011
Fax: (916) 651-4911

Committee Consultant: Mark McKenzie, Senate Appropriations Staff

Director mark.mckenzie@sen.ca.gov
(916) 651-4101

AB 2681 Letter Template - Senate Appropriations '

Xl & AL BO AB 2681 Coalition Letter

Language 07-02-18 1

You are receiving this e-mail because you signed up at our website: California Building Officials. If you

3 -11-



B T RN IR 40 ¥ CITY Ot

675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532 DeLL

August 7, 2018

Senator Mike McGuire

State Capitol

1303 10" Street, Room 5061
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: AB 2681 {Seismic safety: potentially vulnerable buildings)
NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Dear Senator McGuire:

The City of Rio Dell regretfully opposes AB 2681(Nazarian). This bill would require each
building department, of a city or county, to create an inventory of potentially vuinerable
buildings within its jurisdiction, based on age and other publicly available information.
This inventory would then be submitted to the Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES)

for review of compliance standards.

The City of Rio Dell appreciates the good intentions of this bill, and the efforts of the
Seismic Resiliency Initiative workgroup. However, we are strongly opposed to a
statewide mandate contained within the bill, and feel that such a universal requirement
will pose major compliance problems for many local jurisdictions. Local California
building departments reflect the diversity of our great state, and many are too small to
carry out the provisions set forth in AB 2681. Further, adding a new system and
program te an already burdened department will create staffing and financial difficulties.
The entire system and process created by AB 2681 is an onerous task to be passed on

to local government.

As of the July 2 amendments, the bill has not identified a funding mechanism for this
program, or its maintenance, which places an additional burden on the local building
departments and building owners. Currently, the language only calls for Cal OES to
identify funding instead of actually having to secure a funding source for this statewide
orogram. Securing this funding source would be crucial for local governments to finance
such a large undertaking. The way the language is currently drafted allows for Cal OES
to identify funding, even if such funding is unavailable for this program.

The City of Rio Dell supports local jurisdictions that have adopted their own seismic
ordinances. These ordinances allow building officials to modify local standards to meet

AB 26381 Letter of Opposition August 2018

ATTACHMENT 2

12-



the needs of the region and the community. This is in compliance with the six-point
policy of California Building Officials, which maintains that the state should establish
minimum standards and local entities can apply more stringent standards based on their

discretion.

Sincerely,

Mayor Frank Wilson

cc: The Honorable Adrin Nazarian
Members of the Senate Appropriations Committee
Mark McKenzie, Staff Director, Senate Appropriations Committee

AB 2681 Letter of Opposition August 2018

-13-



B R SR T S T T R NS T T

Rio Dell City Hall
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

August 7, 2018
TO: Rio Dell City Council
FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Approval of Employment AZment for Wastewater Superintendent

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

BT € ORGSR T T AN

/

Authorize the City Manager to Sign Employment Agreement.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Iy Of

DeLl)

"

The Current Wastewater Superintendent Trainee has successfully fulfilled the requirements of
his position and is being extended the offer to serve as the City of Rio Dell’s Wastewater

Superintendent.

The attached agreement is similar to the Water and Roadways Superintendent contract. There is
no alteration of the existing master salary table. The term is through June of 2019, similar to the

City’s other employment contracts.

1/

-14-




CITY OF RIO DELL
WASTEWATER SUPERINTENDENT
CONTRACT AGREEMENT

This employment agreement, is made and entered on or about this seventh (7th) day of August,
2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation
of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the “Employer” and Ethan Purvis, hereinafter
referred to as “Employee”, both of whom understand as follows:

WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said employee as Wastewater
Superintendent of the City of Rio Dell; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, establish certain
conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Wastewater Superintendent of the
said City;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties
agree as follows: '

SECTION 1. DUTIES
Employer hereby agrees to employ Ethan Purvis as Wastewater Superintendent of said

Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the Ordinances of said City, pursuant
to California Government Code section 36506, and to perform other legally permissible and
proper duties and functions as the Certified Operator and/or City Manager shall from time to

time assign.

SECTION 2. TERM
This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2019, or until Employee’s term of

employment is terminated as provided in this Section 2 and/or Section 3 of this agreement, or by
the voluntary resignation of Employee. Employee understands he will provide Employer with
forty-five (45) days of notice prior to resignation. This Agreement may be superseded by
subsequent written agreements made between Employee and Employer at mutually acceptable
times throughout Employee’s term of Employment.

a. Termination from Employment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and
Severance Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this
Agreement, below, the Employee shall not be terminated from employment within
the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a new City Manager. The
purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed City Manager to directly
observe the actions and ability of the Employee in the performance of the powers and
duties of his office. In all other circumstances, the Employee can be terminated from
employment with or without cause and for any reason (or no reason at all)

-15-



following two (2) weeks written notice from the City Manager, and without notice
under Section 2.b. of this Agreement. In the case of employment termination prior to
expiration of this Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 2019) the employee shall be
entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and all unused vacation, and executive
leave time, as Employee’s sole and exclusive remedy and right(s) to payment at
employment termination. “Severance” shall be paid according to the following

schedule:

Years of Continuous Service Severance Pay
0-1 year 2 months salary
1-2 years 3 months salary
2-3 years 4 months salary
3-4 years 5 months salary

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the Employee be terminated for cause or as a
result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no severance pay will be
provided upon employment termination. If the Employee voluntarily leaves
employment with the City of Rio Dell or resigns, no severance pay will be provided

upon separation.

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL, TERMINATION
The Employee may be suspended, removed, or dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell
pursuant to Section 2 above or the provisions of City of Rio Dell code or ordinances.

SECTION 4. DISABILITY
Employer may terminate Employee’s employment if Employee suffers a disability that renders

Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City Manager, to perform the essential
functions of the position, even with reasonable accommodation, for four months (twelve weeks)
in any 12-month period. If Employee’s employment is terminated under this Section 4,
Employee shall be compensated for all accrued obligations through the termination date, which
for purposes of this section shall be a date specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also
pay to Employee a severance pay as set forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date,
Employer shall not pay to Employee any other compensation or payment of any kind, or
severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All benefits provided by Employer to Employee under
this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on the Termination Date.

SECTION S. SALARY
The Salary for the Water/Streets Superintendent shall be as follows: Employee shall start at step

B upon execution of the contract.

Contract Employees
JOB TITLE Salary Range ,

A B C D E
Wastewater Superintendent 54717 | 56,359 | 58,050 | 59,791 | 61,585

Step A - Payable during first year of employment.
2

-16-



Step B - Payable during second year of employment subject to performance.

Step C - Payable during third year of employment subject to performance.

Step D - Payable during fourth year of employment subject to performance.

Step E - Payable during fifth year or more of employment subject to performance.

Employee shall be provided “Pager Pay” when assigned this duty by the Public Works Director
or City Manager. Pager pay compensation shall be provided at the level cited the Rio Dell

Employee’s Association agreement.

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The City Manager shall review and evaluate the performance of the Employee not later than nine
months following the Effective Date of this agreement. From time to time as may mutually be
deemed appropriate, the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance
objectives in writing which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Wastewater
Treatment Plant and City. Such goals and performance objectives shall be considered as part of

the annual performance review of Employee.

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall
receive no overtime pay or compensatory time off and is deemed an overtime pay exempt,

salaried employee of the City.

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES

Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed
by any other employer in other employment until termination of the employment relationship.
The term “other employment” shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing,
consulting, or military reserve service performed on Employee’s time off. Employee shall not
spend more than four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer
connected business without the prior written approval of the City Manager.

SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE
Employee’s duties require that she/he shall have the use at all times during his employment with

Employer an automobile to perform Employer’s business. Employee's use of his/her private
vehicle for City business shall be reimbursed to Employee at the current standard mileage rate as
published by the Internal Revenue Service. Subject to the provisions of the City’s separate
Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee shall be responsible for paying for all gas,
maintenance, and repair of said automobile. Employee shall be responsible for paying for all
liability, property damage, and comprehensive insurance on said automobile. Failure to maintain
a valid driver’s license or failure to maintain insurable driving standard as defined by City’s
insurance coverage shall be cause for termination. Employee shall provide employer with a
Department of Motor Vehicle H-6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards.

SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME
For the health and welfare of its employees, it is the policy of the City of Rio Dell that
employees be encouraged to use the vacation benefits granted by the City and shall take

an annual vacation of at least 40 hours.

-17-



Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year in (2) installments;
40 hours on July 1 and 40 hours on January 1. The taking of vacation and executive leave time
shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, who shall not unreasonably
withhold their approval.

Employee may cash out or utilize the Executive Time installment beginning July 1. Employee
shall be paid on the first pay period of June for each calendar year during the term of this
agreement for accrued Executive Leave that remains unused or unpaid during the previous (12)

months.

Employees accrue a sick leave benefit of eight (8) hours each calendar month actually worked by
Employee, and vacation time shall accrue in accord with the following schedule based on years

of continuous employment service to the City:

Years of Continuous Service Hours per Year Accrual Max.
One to three (1-3) 80 hours 120 hours
Four to ten (4-10) 120 hours 180 hours
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 160 hours 240 hours
Sixteen to twenty (16-20) 200 hours 300 hours

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees’
Association.

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE

The amount of vacation time allowed to be accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed
1.5 times the annual amount of vacation time for the Employee’s year of service stated in the
schedule recited Section 10 (not to exceed a maximum of 300 hours). Upon reaching the
applicable vacation accrual maximum in accord with the schedule recited in Section 10, the
employee will not earn or accumulate additional vacation time and shall be automatically cashed

out of 40 hours of accrued vacation, to be paid in the next pay period.

Employees may elect to buy down their vacation accrual at any time, provided that they
have scheduled a vacation leave with their department head or City Manager as
appropriate or have taken their annual vacation and the balance in their vacation account

will be at least 40 hours after the buy down.

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT
Employer agrees to pay or reimburse a $500.00 annual clothing allowance payable $125.00

quarterly. Employer also agrees to pay employee a monthly cell phone allowance to ensure
employee can be contacted at all times. Employee must maintain cell phone service. The City’s
cell phone policy established by separate Resolution of the City Council is applicable in all

regards for Employee.

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT
Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Employee as the City provides
for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of the

4

18-



premium costs for these benefits for the Employee and 70% of the total premium costs for
Employee’s dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan
document. Employee may elect to substitute compensation for health, dental, and vision
insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay period for health, vision
and dental coverage. Proof of health insurance must be provided to employer.

SECTION 14. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Employer does not yet participate in and is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement
System of the State of California. The Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan.
The Employer shall contribute and pay an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the
Employee’s salary to the Deferred Compensation Plan.

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE
A TERM LIFE INSURANCE POLICY IN THE AMOUNT OF Fifty Thousand Dollars

($50,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the Employee during the term of this
agreement.

SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE

This Employment Agreement shall become effective August 7, 2018 and shall remain in effect
through June 30, 2019, subject to changes pursuant to amendments or adjustments made at
mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee’s term of employment with Employer.

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. Employer shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee’s duties as Wastewater
Superintendent. Employer’s indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or liabilities, of
any type or nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful misconduct of

Employee.

SECTION 18. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance.

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the
professional dues and subscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the
City Manager written material and information distributed by the said associations.

SECTION 20. LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and

approved by the City Manager.

SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said

travel and training expenses.

-19-



SECTION 22. ATTORNEY’S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties
to this Agreement or the rights and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable
sum as and for attorney’s fees which shall be determined by the court.

SECTION 23. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the

performance of Employee.

SECTION 24. NOTICES. Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

EMPLOYER EMPLOYEE

City of Rio Dell Ethan Purvis

Rio Dell City Hall 675 Wildwood Avenue
675 Wildwood Ave Rio Dell, CA 95562

Rio Dell, California 95562

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the

United States Postal Service.

SECTION 25. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties.

B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and
C

D

executors of Employee.
. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17

above.

. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held
unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and
effect.

E. This Agreement (including all Exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed,
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein.

-20-



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this
Agreement, both in duplicate.

EMPLOYEE\ EMPLOYER
[/
L o
Flh— ///W.:: %‘/z/ao (2
Ethan Purvis, Date Kyle Knopp Date
Wastewater Superintendent City Manager

Approved as to form:

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date

_21-



Rio Dell City Hall - | @~
675 Wildwood Avenue D = LL)
Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 =
cityofriodell.ca.gov

August 7, 2018

TO: Rio Dell City Council

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manage

SUBJECT:  Contract for Code Enforcement Services

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The attached agreement proposes to utilize professional code enforcement services at a rate of
$25.00 per hour up to a maximum of 700 hours through the fiscal year, or $17,500 plus mileage
reimbursement at the IRS rate. The cost of this contract will be covered by the existing budget of

the Police Department using salary savings from existing and projected vacancies.

"

i,




City of Rio Dell
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
Telephone: (707) 764-3532; Fax: (707) 764-5480

Professional Services Agreement

This Professional Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered between
the parties listed below as of the date(s) set forth below. For your protection, make sure
that you read and understand all provisions before signing. The General Terms and
Conditions attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A” are incorporated in this document and, along
with this page, constitute material terms and conditions of the Agreement between the

parties.

TO: Bernadette Arwood DATE:

Agreement No.

The undersigned Consultant offers to furnish the following services (the “Services”):

The Services shall be provided on a time and materials basis not to exceed the amounts
described in EXHIBIT “B”, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The

scope of work for this project includes the following:
Code enforcement services shall include the following:

e Provide code enforcement officer services for up to 700 hours before June 30, 2019;

e Code enforcement officer(s) shall have a minimum of three years of experience;

e Code enforcement officer(s) shall keep schedule determined no less than two weeks in
advance at any given time;

e Investigate violations of City zoning, building, nuisance, and property maintenance laws,
file complaints against violators;

e Perform field surveys and investigate complaints of possible zoning including cannabis
regulation violations, building, nuisance and property maintenance code violations;

e Recognize the need for, and implement appropriate remedial actions to correct
violations;

e Perform and document inspections to determine the validity of complaints, and to
identify conformance to the applicable codes and ordinances;

e Take photographs and necessary measurements and gather all pertinent facts from the
parties involved:;

e Prepare and issue a warning, Notice of Violation, Notices and Order when necessary,
administrative citations as required and in compliance with the Rio Dell Municipal Code,
as amended from time to time;

e Provide neighborhood patrols for visible violations of the City’s zoning, building,
nuisance and property maintenance laws.

-P3-



Provide all necessary equipment, uniforms, and vehicles for code enforcement
officer(s);

Provide other professional code enforcement support services as determined by the
Chief of Police; and .

Coordinate and attend meetings of the City’s Nuisance Committee, acting as staff to the

committee.
Coordinate all activities with the Chief of Police, the City Manager, other City Code

Enforcement agents and the City Attorney, as necessary.
Prepare and present agenda item(s) to the City Council related to adoption of Hearing
Officer Services related to code enforcement including any recommended changes in

City Ordinance.
Contractor shall fill out background investigation form and perform Livescan for the

review of the Chief of Police.
Contractor shall be reimbursed for mileage at the IRS rate. Miles and hours may not be

billed for time spent travelling to or from Rio Dell.

Payment Intervals:

Monthly, 30 days after invoice unless contested.

Instructions: Sign and return original. Upon acceptance by City of Rio Dell, a copy will be
signed by its authorized representative and promptly returned to you. Insert below, the names

of your authorized representative(s).

Accepted:  City of Rio Dell Consultant:

By By

Title Title

Other authorized representative(s): Other authorized representative(s):

List of Exhibits:

Exhibit “A” — General Conditions
Exhibit “B” — Compensation Schedule

_24-



EXHIBIT A

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Performance of Services/No Assignment. Time is of the essence in performance of the
Services. Consultant represents to City that Consultant possesses, or will arrange to secure from others,
all of the necessary professional capabilities, experience, resources and facilities necessary to provide to
City the services contemplated under this Agreement. Except as specifically authorized under this
Agreement, the services to be provided under this Agreement shall not be assigned, transferred
contracted or subcontracted out without the prior written approval of City.

2. Hold Harmless and Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its City Council, boards and commissions, officers, agents
and employees (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties) from and against any and all claims (including,
claims for bodily injury, death or damage to property), demands, obligations, damages, actions, causes of
action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and expenses (including, attorney's fees,
disbursements and court costs) of every kind and nature that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, its principals, officers, agents,
employees, vendors, suppliers, consultants, subcontractors, anyone employed directly or indirectly by any
of them or for whose acts they may be liable or any or all of them in performance, or non-performance, of

services under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be construed to require Consultant to
indemnify the Indemnified Parties from any Claim arising from the active negligence or willful misconduct
of the Indemnified Parties. Nothing in this indemnity shall be construed as authorizing any award of
attorney’s fees in any action on or to enforce the terms of this Agreement. This indemnity shall apply to
all claims and liability regardless of whether any insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do
not act as a limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by the Consultant

3. Independent Contractor. It is understood that City retains Consultant on an independent
contractor basis and Consultant is not an agent or employee of City. The manner and means of
conducting the work are under the control of Consultant, except to the extent they are limited by statute,
rule or regulation and the expressed terms of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute approval for Consultant or any of Consultant's employees or agents, to be the
agents or employees of City. Consultant shall have the responsibility for and control over the means of
performing the work, provided that Consultant is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
Anything in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct Consultant as to the details of
the performance or to exercise a measure of control over Consultant shall mean only that Consultant

shall follow the desires of City with respect to the resuits of the services.

3.1 The Consultant shall at all times remain an independent contractor with respect to the
services to be performed under this Agreement and shall be responsible for the payment of Federal and
State Employer Withholding Taxes, Unemployment Insurance Taxes, FICA Taxes, Retirement, Life
and/or Medical Insurance, and Worker's Compensation Insurance for the employees of the Consultant or
any other person performing services under this Agreement. Consultant and its employees are not
entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to City's employees, including disability or unemployment
insurance, workers' compensation, medical insurance, sick leave, or any other employment benefit.
Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties,
interest, or damages suffered by City as a result of any claim by any person or entity contrary to the
provisions of this Section.

4. Insurance. Unless otherwise agreed, without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City,
and prior to commencement of work, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense
during the term of this Agreement, a policy or policies of liability insurance of the type and amounts
described below and in a form satisfactory to City.

95



A. Certificates of Insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance with
original endorsements to City as evidence of the insurance coverage required herein. Insurance
certificates must be approved by the City prior to commencement of performance or issuance of any
permit. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with City at all times during the term of
this Agreement.

B. Signature. A person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf
shall sign certification of all required policies.

C. Acceptable Insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance
company currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the
State of California, with an assigned policyholders’ Rating of A (or higher) and Financial Size Category
Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of Best's Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise
approved by the City.

D. Coverage Requirements.

i. Workers’ Compensation Coverage. Consultant shall maintain Workers’
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for his or her employees in accordance with
the laws of the State of California. In addition, Consultant shall require each subcontractor to similarly
maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance in accordance with the
laws of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees. Any notice of cancellation or non-
renewal of all Workers’ Compensation policies must be received by City at least thirty (30) calendar days
(10 calendar days written notice of non-payment of premium) prior to such change. The insurer shall
agree to waive all rights of subrogation against City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers for
losses arising from work performed by Consultant for City.

ii. General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance in an amount not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without limitation, contractual liability. If
commercial general liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement, or the
general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit..

iii. Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance
covering bodily injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in
connection with work to be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired,
non-owned or rented vehicles, in an amount not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) combined

single limit for each occurrence.

iv. Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain
professional errors and omissions insurance, which covers the services to be performed in connection
with this Agreement in the minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and in the

aggregate.

E. Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy
shall either include or be endorsed with the following specific language:

i. The City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work performed
by or on behalf of the Consuitant.

ii. This policy shall be considered primary insurance as respects to City, its elected
or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as respects to all claims, losses, or
liability arising directly or indirectly from the Consultant's operations or services provided to City. Any

_26-



insurance maintained by City, including any self-insured retention City may have, shall be considered
excess insurance only and not contributory with the insurance provided hereunder.

iii. This insurance shall act for each insured and additional insured as though a
separate policy had been written for each, except with respect to the limits of liability of the insuring
company.

iv. The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City, its elected or appointed
officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers.

V. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers.

Vi, The insurance provided by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, or
canceled, by either party except after thirty (30) calendar days (10 calendar days written notice of non-
payment of premium) written notice has been received by City.

5. Ownership of Documents. All documents, information and materials of any and every type
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be the property of the City. Such documents
shall include but not be limited to data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and such
other information and materials as may have been accumulated by the Consultant in performing work
under this Agreement, whether completed or in process. The Consultant shall assume no responsibility
for the unintended use by others of any such documents, information, or materials on project(s) that are
not related to the scope of services described under this Agreement.

6. Confidentiality. All City information disclosed to Consultant during the course of
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed
to any other persons or parties except as authorized by City, or required by law. All documents, including
drafts, preliminary drawings or plans, notes and communications that result from the services in this
Agreement, shall be kept confidential unless City authorizes in writing the release of information.

7. Intellectual Property Indemnity. The Consultant shall defend and indemnify City, its
agents, officers, representatives and employees against any and all liability, including costs, for
infringement of any United States’ letters patent, trademark, or copyright infringement, including costs,
contained in Consultant's drawings and specifications provided under this Agreement.

8. Access to Records. Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents, accounting
ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for City under this Agreement on file for at least
three (3) years following the date of final payment to Consultant by City. Any duly authorized
representative(s) of City shall have access to such records for the purpose of inspection, audit and
copying at reasonable times, during Consultant's usual and customary business hours. Consulitant shall
provide proper facilities to City's representative(s) for access and inspection.

9. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant or its employees may be subject to the provisions of the
California Political Reform Act of 1974 (the "Act"), which (1) requires such persons to disclose any
financial interest that may foreseeably be materially affected by the work performed under this
Agreement, and (2) prohibits such persons from making, or participating in making, decisions that will
foreseeably financially affect such interest.

If subject to the Act, Consultant shall conform to all requirements of the Act. Failure to do
so constitutes a material breach and is grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement by City.
Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless City for any and all claims for damages resulting from
Consultant's violation of this Section.

97



Consultant warrants that neither Consultant, nor any of its employees, agents or subcontractors,
has a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be performed under this Agreement, nor shall such
individuals, during this term of this Agreement, acquire any interest, which would conflict in any manner
with the performances of services hereunder.

10. Nondiscrimination. Consultant represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it
shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for employment because of race,
religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age.

11. Termination. In the event that either party fails or refuses to perform any of the provisions of
this Agreement at the time and in the manner required, that party shall be deemed in default in the
performance of this Agreement. If such default is not cured within a period of seven (7) calendar days, or
if more than seven (7) calendar days are reasonably required to cure the default and the defaulting party
fails to give adequate assurance of due performance within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of
written notice of default, specifying the nature of such default and the steps necessary to cure such
default, the non-defaulting party may terminate the Agreement forthwith by giving to the defaulting party

written notice thereof.

Notwithstanding the above provisions, City shall have the right, at its sole discretion and without
cause, to terminate this Agreement at any time by giving seven (7) calendar days prior written notice to
Consultant. Consultant In the event of termination under this Section, City shall pay Consultant for
services satisfactorily performed and costs incurred up to the effective date of termination for which
Consultant has not been previously paid. On the effective date of termination, Consultant shall deliver to
City all reports, documents and other information developed or accumulated in the performance of this

Agreement, whether in draft or final form.

12. Waiver. A waiver by either party of any breach, of any term, covenant or condition contained
herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term,
covenant or condition contained herein, whether of the same or a different character. The acceptance by
the City of the performance of any work or services by Consultant shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
any term or condition of this Agreement.

13. Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written document
executed by both Consultant and City.

14. Controlling Law and Venue. City and Consultant agree that the law governing this
Agreement shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other
arising out of the performance of or otherwise relating to this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in

the County of Humboldt.

_08-



EXHIBIT B—COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

City of Rio Dell Code Enforcement Professional Services Agreement

Payment for Code Enforcement Services provided by Consultant shall be as follows:

Amounts. Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services rendered under this
Agreement as follows (the “Payment Schedule”):

Not to Exceed Maximum. In no event shall Consultant invoice the City for an amount
in excess of $17,500 during the term of this Agreement (the “Not to Exceed Amount”), of
the Effective Date of this Agreement, unless sooner terminated) (the “Yearly Not to

Exceed Amount”).

In the event Consultant performs services for the City pursuant to the Payment
Schedule which exceed the Monthly Not to Exceed Amount, all billings in excess of the
Monthly Not to Exceed Amount will be waived by, and not payable to, Consultant.
Likewise, in the event Consultant performs services for the City pursuant to the Payment
Schedule which exceed the Yearly Not to Exceed Amount, all billings in excess of the
Yearly Not to Exceed Amount will be waived by, and not payable to, Consultant.

Hourly Rate. Consultant shall bill in quarter hour increments, not to exceed $25.00 per
hour.

-29-



Staff Update — 2018-08-07

City Council

City Manager

Met with staff from Recology at their Samoa facility.

Attended Meeting of Humboldt County Solid Waste Local Task Force.

Issued Press Release on City Council election.

Coordinate tours and media for HRDBP.

Worked on sidewalk infill ATP grant application — application filed.

Met with Mayor and PG&E representative over inverse condemnation and AB 33.
Attended open house in Fortuna for Terra-Gen wind energy project.

Met with representatives of Humboldt Growers Association.

Met with Sydney Lewis from Kamala Harris’ office, along with Councilmembers Marks, Johnson

and Garnes.

Strategized with DanCo, Community Resource Center and others on ADA compliance for Rio

Dell public services.

Talked with County on monument Slip Out — Federal funds have been awarded. County
tentatively to construct repair in spring of 2019. However, County warns that repairs might take

until 2020.

Multiple meetings on track and trace, including interagency discussion with Eureka and County

of Humboldt.

Conducted sealed bid for Sewer Jetter.

City Clerk

Processed seven (7) Building Permits:
1. 261 Belleview Ave. - Pergola & Deck
2. 143 Monument Rd.- Sewer Lateral

-30-




318 First Ave. - Sewer Cleanout

111 First Ave. - (1) Window

925 Hilda Ct. — PV Solar System

615 Gunnerson Lane — PV Solar System
590 View Ave. — Sewer Cleanout

Nowvaw

Processed two (2) Business License applications:
1. Freedom Forever, LLC — Non-Resident Solar Contractor

2. Honey Hole Iron — 1397 Eeloa Ave. - Welding, Fabrication, Fences, Gates

Attended the Rio Dell Library ADA meeting at the County with the City Manager on July 26,
2018.

Terminated contract with A-1 Cleaning Services, LLC for cleaning of City Hall, effective
August 23, 2018.

Redwood Glass will be installing (7) new sliding windows at City Hall over the next week or two.

City Attorney

Human Resources, Risk & Training

City Manager, finance and Public Works staff conducted 10 interviews and offered two

individuals OIT positions.

Set up interviews for Finance Department Fiscal Assistant I/l

Finance Department

CDBG Annual Reports filed
Complete annual payroll report for Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE)

File 941 and DE7 Internal Revenue Service and Employment Development Department

quarterly payroll reports

Measure Z Quarterly report completed

On-going reconciliation of GL accounts for year-end audit
Transfer funds to LAIF account (investing activities)

July utility billing processed and bills mailed

-31-




On-going accounts payable (A/P), accounts receivable (A/R), payroll (P/R), general ledger (G/L),
DocStar electronic document filing, and general accounting duties

Public Works Water

1. Training with Utility Crew (ONGOING)
a. Operating New Sewer Jetter
b. Operating Vactor Trailer
c. Operating JD riding mower

2. Meter Reading

3. Meter RE-Reads for leaks and / or High usage.

4. General Work orders for Public Works Dept.

5. North and South Gateway Mowing and Cleanup

6. Street Sweeping throughout town (County Sweeper)
7. Roadways Mowing, Weed eating and Tree Trimming.
8. Garbage cleanup on River Bar and throughout town.
9. Corp yard cleanup and organizing.

10. Preparations for Wildwood Days

11. Safety Trainings

12. Work on Electrical issues at North Rio Dell Welcome Sign.
13. General vehicle maintenance

Public Works Wastewater

Forklift acquisition was put on hold last week. United Rentals was given direction to send
pictures to staff as a way of identify any visual issues with the forklift before signing paperwork
and taking possession of the lift. However, through a series of mix ups on delivery dates and
Staffing issues with united rentals, the forklift was delivered early without visual inspection of
the lift. Staff immediately identified four maintenance issues that need to be taken care of
before and taking possession of the lift. After Negotiating with the Sales Rep at United Rentals,
all repair work identified by staff will be completed, as well as a new quote provided showing
an additional 1250 off the original price of the lift. It is the opinion of staff this lift will still be a
good option for the city. When repairs are completed Staff will visually inspect the lift before
the delivery and give a final approval of payment to United Rentals or consider other quotes

provided to the City Council.

Public Works Streets, Buildings and Grounds

Public Works City Engineer

The City has received three proposals for engineering services from our recent RFQ. Evaluation

is underway.

_32-




Public Works Capital Projects

Work is expected to begin on the Water backwash drain realignment project at the corporation

yard within the next two weeks.

Police Department

The Department had the following statistics for the period of July 11 to July 31, 2018. This
period of time saw a lower than normal number of calls for service, reports and arrests. This
may have been due in part to Officer Carnahan being away at training for a week and
consequently, the hours of service were reduced.

Officer Calls for Service Reports Arrests
Conner 36 9 1
Beauchaine 43 11 2
Carnahan 12 4 1
Totals 97 (6 unassigned) 24 4

During the period of July 11 to July 31, 2018, the Department opened twelve new cases dealing
with abandoned or junk vehicles. During the same time period, the Department closed eleven
cases. Of the eleven, seven were towed by the City with the remaining four being closed by

voluntary compliance.

During the period of July 11 to July 31, 2018, there were fourteen calls for service related to
animal control issues. Six dogs were transported to Miranda’s Rescue. One of these calls was
for a dog that had been on an aircraft cable tether in the backyard. The dog was athletic and
was able to jump the six-foot-high fence. Unfortunately, the tether was not long enough to
allow the dog to reach the ground on the other side and the dog was strangled to death by its

collar.

On July 29, 2018, Officer Carnahan was on patrol when he stopped to investigate two vehicles
parked near the Eagle Prairie Bridge. One of the vehicles had two license plates on it that did
not match. The vehicle’s registration expired in 2015. As part of the process to have the pickup
truck towed, Officer Carnahan completed an inventory of the contents. In so doing, he found
drug paraphernalia and ammunition. As the tow truck driver arrived, a convicted felon
approached Officer Carnahan. Officer Carnahan was able to connect the pickup with the
convicted felon and he was arrested on numerous charges. The felon was transported to the

jail and the truck was towed and stored.

Community Development Department

Meeting with City Manager, Rex Bohn and Natalynne Delapp to discuss Terra-Gen Wind
project.

-33-




Two Inspections for 918 Hilda Court Solar project.
Review and approve Solar Plans for 925 Hilda Court.

Process Mazur Notice of Merger.

Review County-Rio Dell Library ADA Report and findings. Review pertinent Sections of the
California Building Code and the Federal Regulations (28 CFR Part 36).

Reviewed and approved Plans for deck and gazebo at 261 Belleview Avenue.

Complete review and project report for DANCO’s 26 unit project as part of the State’s tax
Allocation Committee application.

Review Ruth Roan CDBG file and terms of assumption. Prepare Request for Notice of Default or
Sale for recordation.

Review inquiry regarding Air B&B’s in the City of Rio Dell. Reach out to other local jurisdictions
regarding their regulations.

Prepare Council Staff Report and Draft Ordinance for Commercial and Neighborhood Center
text amendments to allow apartments on upper floors of commercial buildings.

Review HCD'’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) information for the upcoming Housing

Element cycle.
Review and approve Solar Plans for 615 Gunnerson Lane.

Review Evans CDBG file regarding loan and lien on mobilehome.

Intergovernmental

Staff attended a meeting with the Fire District and County of Humboldt to review the USDO)J

Consent Decree and options for preserving library services in Rio Dell.

Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park

Review first comments/corrections for Glenn White’s tenant improvements for Building #3.

Prepare for and attend Planning Commission meeting for Strictly Humboldt and the Community
Commercial and Neighborhood Center text amendments to allow apartments on upper floors

of commercial buildings.

-34-




Meeting with Sandi Deluca regarding Mountain Investments permits and sale of parcel and
project.

Research and review old deeds and maps related to Well #2 over at the HRDBP.
Review Chain of Custody (Track & Trace) information for Humboldt Live Resin.
Begin review for State proposed final cannabis regulations.

Meeting with Natalynne Delapp and Terra Carver regarding the HRDBP.
Inspection of Glenn White foundation/anchor system for modular office.
Meeting with Glenn White and City Manager regarding extending water line.

Prepared and executed Agreement with Interwest Consulting for Plan Check services for Glenn
White’s tenant improvements for Building #3. Assembled Plans and Specifications and mailed

to Interwest.

Council Priority Areas

Street Work

Street sweeping conducted on July 27,

River Access

Habitat Parcel

Work with contractor to define scope and cost of project.

Code Enforcement

Draft contract for code enforcement and issued letters.

Access Humboldt

The 8/7/18 Council meeting will audio recorded.

55




T R ST TR T

Rio Dell City Hall
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
riodellcity.com

August 7, 2018

TO: Rio Dell City Council y

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager -

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action Related to Rio Dell Library and Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL.:

Authorize the Mayor to sign the attached letter.

Alternative:  Provide alternate direction to staff; or,

Take no action. While the Rio Dell Library faces no impending decision to close
the facility, it has been identified by the Department of Justice as ADA non-
compliant, potentially threatening its future in the community.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

On September 13, 2016 the County of Humboldt entered into a consent decree with the United
States Department of Justice (DOJ), which mandates the County of Humboldt to comply with
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. Title II applies to state and local
government entities and the programs, services and activities provided by such entities by
protecting qualified individuals with disabilities from discrimination on the basis of disability.
The consent decree requires the county to modify facilities, where feasible, to ensure that
programs, services and activities are accessible to and useable by individuals with disabilities.
The county is subject to meeting multiple timelines, with the overall result of bringing all
county-owned and leased facilities providing programs, services and activities into compliance
with the ADA by September 13, 2019.

The consent decree required the county to hire an Independent Licensed Architect (ILA) and for
the ILA to certify alterations, additions or modifications to facilities. On March 16, 2017, the
DOJ approved SZS Consulting Group as the County's ILA. During 2017 the ILA went to various
locations throughout the County to conduct assessments, including Rio Dell.

The consent decree specifically identifies over 50 facilities that contain barriers to access
pursuant to Title II. The Rio Dell Library is one of those facilities specifically mentioned in the
consent decree. However, the consent decree also states the county and ILA will ensure

35




compliance with the requirements of Title II for all of the county's facilities offering programs,
services and activities, effectively adding another 75 county facilities not explicitly mentioned in
the consent decree. These evaluations are also conducted based upon the current federal
standards for ADA that also include not just a specific facility but also the nearest path of travel
to the facility’s ADA parking space and the nearest path of travel to a bus stop. During 2017 the
City was visited by the ILA who conducted studies related to the library, its ADA parking, and
the path of travel between the library and the nearest bus stop, located on Wildwood Avenue

near City Hall.

The ILA has found ADA deficiencies in all three facilities and has identified the cost to bring the
facilities up to current ADA code as $248,365. Staff believes this number to be an
underestimation. The County has estimated that the library itself will require $127,250 in
modifications to meet the most time sensitive components of the original consent decree. This
cost includes $25,450 to hire an Architecture and Engineering firm to provide biddable designs.
This cost does not include project management or the hiring of a CASP certified specialist who
can evaluate the contractor’s adherence to the ADA specifications in the design.

Signed in 2012, the current lease agreement for the library states that responsibility for ADA
compliance is held by the Rio Dell Fire Protection District. The library is staffed and operated by
the County of Humboldt. The sidewalks and bus stop facilities are the responsibility of the City.

The County of Humboldt is facing a September 7" deadline to submit reporting to the
Department of Justice. The County will need to designate an ADA accessible library; most
likely at the Fortuna Library. While the Rio Dell Library would not have to be closed, a
transition plan would need to be established for the public use facility, including the parking and

sidewalks.
Several potential solutions exist:

1.) That the County of Humboldt identifies the Fortuna Library as the designated
disability access facility for the region on an ongoing basis. This may resolve the
County’s dilemma with the Consent Decree. If the facility remains a public facility, it
would still be required to meet ADA requirements, including the path of travel to the
nearest bus stop. There is no guarantee that the USDOJ will consider the matter
resolved as far as the building itself is concerned.

2.) Have the Fire District bring the library building up to ADA code. During a July 26,
2018 meeting with the County of Humboldt and Fire District, representatives of the
Fire District indicated that they were not in a financial position to bring the facility up
to ADA code. It is not clear if this is the official Fire District position. Should the Fire
District upgrade the building, the City will need to develop a transition plan to update
the path of travel to the bus stop to bring the facility into full compliance.

3.) The City could assess taking over ownership of the library property. This would be
taking on a significant liability, including the continued responsibility for ADA
parking and path of travel to the nearest bus stop. However, the City may be in a
better position to leverage grant dollars to bring the facility up to ADA code. No clear
path to grant funding has been identified at this time.

4.) There is a potential solution involving DanCo’s affordable housing project. The
concept would involve DanCo adding approximately 1,000 square feet of space to the
common building of their proposed development and relocating it adjacent to Rigby
Street. This site could then house a relocated library. This concept is in its infancy but
if successful, would alleviate ADA access concerns for the library well into the future

-37-




and keep the library in Rio Dell. Rigby Street is also on the bus route and the bus stop
itself could be relocated to directly in front of the new library.

At this point in time staff recommends authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached letter on this
issue. The letter states the City’s interest in the library remaining within the City of Rio Dell and
endorses the exploration of options 2-4 above as a preliminary transition plan. In theory the
County can use this letter (along with one issued by the Fire District) to help provide time for all

parties to explore potential solutions to keep the library in Rio Dell.

The Fire District will meet on August 9" to discuss this issue.

1!

_38-




TR £ AT RTI4TN

Rio Dell City Hall

675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

August 7, 2018
To Whom It May Concern,
RE: City of Rio Dell Policy Statement on Rio Dell Public Library

It has come to our attention that the Rio Dell Library is not in compliance with the American’s with Disabilities Act
(ADA). The facility falls under United States Department of Justice Consent Decree with the County of Humboldt.
The library facility is not owned or operated by the City of Rio Dell, nor does the USDOJ Consent Decree itself
specifically mention properties owned by the City. The library could face closure if this issue is not addressed by

the parties currently responsible for the service.
On behalf of the City Council | wish to express our support for the following potential solutions to this problem:

1.) The City of Rio Dell encourages the Fire District to make the necessary modifications to the building in

order to bring the facility up to modern ADA standards.

. 2.) Should the Fire District be unwilling or unable to make these upgrades, the City of Rio Dell commits to a
discussion with the Fire District regarding transfer of ownership of the property to the City where the City
may be able to leverage additional grant dollars to upgrade the building and remove access barriers for

the disabled.
3.) Should neither of the above options work, the City will continue to work with the Rigby and Center Street

DanCo Affordable Housing Project in order to secure a new ADA compliant facility for the library.

The library services and the facility are the responsibility of both the County of Humboldt and the Fire District. We
encourage these two entities to work together to solve these long-standing issues. The library is an asset of the
community that is worth preserving. The City of Rio Dell is willing to help both the County of Humboldt and the
Fire District explore options that will preserve library services for the community. We believe that six months are
needed in order to explore the various options and develop and actionable transition plan. Such an actionable

transition plan should be ready by February 7, 2019.

We understand that if no viable alternative is possible, Library services could be redirected to other ADA compliant
facilities in the City of Fortuna, City of Eureka or provided by the County library bookmobile. We do not find this to
be an acceptable outcome and write this letter to endorse the efforts to keep the Rio Dell Library in Rio Dell.

Sincerely,

Frank Wilson
Mayor

-39-



CITYy OF

T TR T IO TR DA S e R

Rio Dell City Hall \-—”Q
675 Wildwood Avenue D E LD

e A

Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
riodellcity.com

August 7, 2018
TO: Rio Dell City Council A
FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Presentation from Danco on Low Income Housing Project

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL.

Receive the presentation.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Chris Dart from Danco will discuss a proposal for low income housing located on a vacant parcel
adjacent to Rigby and Center Streets.

Attached: A description of the project from the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee.

11

_40-




CITY OF RO DELL
JUL 337035

RECEIVED

CALIFORNIA TAX CREDIT ALLOCATION COMMITTEE

915 Capitol Mall, Suite 485 MEMBERS
Sacramento, CA 95814 JOHN CHIANG, CHAIRMAN
p (916) 654-6340 State Treasurer
f (916) 654-6033

www.treasurer.ca.gov/ctcac

BETTY YEE
State Controller

MICHAEL COHEN
Director of Finance

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mark Stivers

July 24,2018

Kyle Knopp

City Manager

City of Rio Dell
675 Wildwood Ave
Rio Dell, CA 95562

Dear Mr. Knopp:

The California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) administers both the federal and state
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Programs, and we have just received a Housing Tax Credit
application for a project located in your jurisdiction. The applicant listed below has sent a formal
review request along with an evaluation form to the local reviewing agency. However, federal law
requires us to notify you upon receipt of the application. We welcome any comments you may
have. A copy of the project description submitted with the application is attached for your review.

The following information identifies the project:

Applicant: Rio Dell Rigby LP (to be formed)
Project Name: Rio Dell Rigby Affordable Housing Project

TCAC Project #: CA-18-085
Project Address: SW Corner of Center Street & Rigby Ave

Rio Dell, CA 95562
Low Income Units: 25

If you choose to comment, please do so by August 15, 2018. You may contact TCAC staff at
(916) 654-6340 if you should have any questions in the meantime. [ appreciate your attention to

this matter and look forward to hearing from you.
Sincerely,

Mark Stivers
Executive Director

_41-



CA-1%~0% 2

Attachment 12
Construction and Design Description
Regulation 10322(h)(11)

This attachment should be a detailed narrative description of the proposed project’s construction and
design including how the design will serve the targeted population.

Include basic information about the project:

¢ number of buildings, stories per building, units per building, any elevator access

e building construction, foundation, and exterior type(s)

¢ building area uses (residential, community/common, commercial)

¢ housing type and how the design will serve the targeted population

e number of units and bedroom types, accessibility features '

e parking (number of spaces, carports, accessibility)

* site amenities (examples: community and common areas, laundry, gated access, security,
recreational areas, pool, community garden, etc.)

e sustainable and green building elements
e multi-phase projects should provide info about other phase sites (previously built or proposed) and

any shared areas, services, management, etc. These may require prior approval by TCAC.
e summary of any planned parcel subdivisions or parcel merging, if not described elsewhere.

e description of any existing structures

Overall Project Vision:

The proposed project, Rio Dell Permanent Supportive Housing, is designed based on the Pocket
Neighborhood concept. The project includes 26 Cottage style residential units with a manager’s unit and
Common structures. The design is approached with a focus on the respect to the functional and social
needs of the residents, including the principles of neighborly behavior along with accessibility and
Universal Design. Special attention is given to the following Vision and goals:

e Attractive and dignified living opportunities

e Independent living with neighbors

e Welcoming and safe, layering of public to private

e Within the context of neighboring buildings both in scale and material expression

e A fresh & positive environment, vibrant landscaping and textures
e Vernacular and economical, with special areas of interest & artistry

e Sustainability is evident and celebrated

Building Typology, Unit Mix, and Common Spaces:

Composed of 28 total buildings, the complex is laid out in a way to create a Neighborhood with Common
open areas leading to private open areas and entrances to each unit. Itis not part'of a phased project,
and will be completed all as one construction contract. All construction is one story. There are 22 one-

_42-



bedroom units and 4 two-bedroom units. One of the two-bedroom units is reserved for the on-site
manager and is located near the main Common Building.

In addition to the manager’s office and dwelling units, a Main Common Building at over 2,000 S.F. will
contain support facilities such as a Aresidential-style common kitchen near a gathering area for group

meetings, an exercise room, office space for the onsite property manager, the resident services
coordination, room for a case manager, 2 individual counselor rooms, a bed-bug decontamination room,
storage and outdoor gathering area for BBQ's. The common open spaces offer various opportunities for
outdoor activities in addition to the full-size basketball court. The large community room and cooking
facilities will facilitate larger resident gatherings and social events. All these common areas will be
incorporated into both the overall service program and the individual service plans of each resident. The
building and programs are designed to interface to prevent isolation and encourage light social

interaction.

Site Design & Construction Type:

The buildings are situated with roof slopes with the best solar orientation, There are concrete pathways
with native landscaping connecting the parking areas to the. The Cottage type structures are designed to
have a vernacular theme. The Concrete slab-on-grade foundation supporting a wood-framed 2x6 wall
framing and a manufactured truss roof system finished with Hardie-Siding and asphalt roofing.

The parking area includes 40 parking spaces total, including 3 accessible parking stalls. There are two
new driveway entrances for easy automobile access. There is also a trash enclosure located near the
manager’s unit. Rainwater is managed with onsite bioswales, for pre-treatment prior to going into the
storm drain system. There is a fence along the property lines, providing privacy along that edge and the
adjacent parcel. Exterior lighting will provide both adequate way-finding as well as protection of night

sky.

The Common Open spaces offer various opportunities for out door activities in addition to the full size
Basketball Court.

Construction Systems, Energy Efficiency, & Sustainability:

Insulation is provided with Greenguard® Indoor Air Quality Certified fiberglass insulation for a nominal
R-value of R-21 in walls and R-38 or higher in the ceiling. The conditioned space envelope will be sealed

for reduced air infiltration and prevention of condensation.

Windows will be vinyl framed with easy latching mechanisms and specified with an optimal U-value and
solar heat gain coefficient (SHGC). All doors will be constructed with no added urea formaldehyde wood

and use accessible lever-type hardware.

Indoor air quality is maintained with local exhaust to the outdoors from each bathroom and kitchen
range hood. In addition, each dwelling unit will meet the performance requirements for whole house

ventilation per the ASHRAE 62.2 standard.

.8



All plumbing fixtures will meet the 2016 CA Green Building Code requirements as well as the EPA
WaterSense criteria. Plumbing piping will be insulated with a minimum of one inch thick (R-4) cellular
foam wrap for all hot water piping and for cold water piping within exterior wall cavities or within five
feet of the water heater.

Each unit will be independently metered for its electrical use. Space heating will be provided by super
efficient air-source mini-split heat pumps, micro-ducted, with a Heating Seasonal Performance Factor
(HSPF) of 10.0. These units are also capable of providing cooling, even though the local climate rarely
requires cooling to maintain comfort. Hybrid electric air-source heat pump water heaters'with an Energy
Factor (EF) of 2.9 will provide domestic water heating. This all-electric design enables the complete
elimination of natural gas utilities and provides the opportunity to be meet a net zero energy rating with
the possible future increased size of the already provided photovoltaic solar array.

The combination of these strategies will result in a building that is super energy efficient and maintains
minimal utility costs for the residents while exceeding the California Title 24 Building Energy Code
compliance sta ndards by more than a 40% margin for the residential areas. The project will be enrolled
in the Enterprise Green Communities certification program, which includes participation in the Energy

Star New Homes California V3 certification program.

See TAB 18 and TAB 25 for more in-depth information on the exact specs for energy-related materials to
be used and appliances.

Offsites

(1) General off-site costs (off-sites that do not immediately border the project site)
None.
(2) Project-specific off-site costs (off-sites that immediately border the project site)

a. Off-site costs meeting the requirements under TCAC Regulation Section
10325(c)(9) as public contributions of off-site costs.

None.

b. Other off-site costs that do not meet the requirements under TCAC Regulation
Section 10325(c)(9) as public contributions of off-site costs.

None.

44 -



I TR G R  EEIIINNS=,

Rio Dell City Hall
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

August 7, 2018
TO: Rio Dell City Council
FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Discussion and Possible Action on 2015 Active Transportation Project

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive the presentation.
Provide direction to staff on preferred options to close financing gap:

1: Continue with current design plans and supplement overages using city funds.
2: Reduce project components to remain within grant programmed amount.

3: A combination of options 1 or 2.
4: Request additional information of the City Engineer and continue the meeting.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The City’s engineering firm will provide an update on the 2015 Active Transportation Program
grant project.

In summary, the projected cost of the project exceeds the available grant amount by
approximately $224,118. The Council does not need to make a decision tonight on direction to
close this gap. A variety of options exist and the Council should feel free to request more

information in order to give appropriate direction.

Attached is a draft of the City Engineer’s powerpoint presentation. Additional information will
be provided during the meeting.

I

sl




SonT > 8L0Z ‘L 3snbBny
113 Bunesiy j1ounoy Ao 2@ o1y

IO ALDD

}o9foid (dLlv) weiboid uoneyiodsues] aAIIdY SLOZ
weiboid yoseasng Ayjunwwosn

pue A}ajesg SLAS I12a o1y

J1AVdd | P




309loid yoseasynp Aunwwo) pue A3ajes SINS (|8q oY

c1Tiag

3 O

alepdn
uoneliddy (4 8joAD) el 41v 8102 -

plemio Buinopy
snjels uauny .

punoibyoeg

MOBIAIBAQD uoljejuasald



303load yoseasnyng MHunwwo9 pue A3ayes SIYS [I9Q oY

FM@E&m

spunj yojew Ao op .

000'9€S - 2In1oNJ1Seljul-UuoN
000 LLL'LS - UoNONJISU0D
000°001$ - Rep-10-1yBry

: (Serewins3
000 O¥LS - 9 suoieslinads ‘sueld) 39Sd

‘ (JuswnooQ |BJUSULOIIAUT
000°08$ - % [eAoiddy 109[01d) A39Vd

"Joaloud ayy Joy
Spuny Z 81940 d1V J0o IN ££5°L$. POpIeme sem A3 oy ‘S0z J12q0100

Buiwwe.boid pue piemy — punoabyoeg



309foud yoeannp Ayunwwon pue A3oges S1NS (1o oy

el

SIPPIA
: JUSLWNUOIA}
e e flejuswis|g
alleld s|be3

Y

ARy =

sjuswanoidwi A}ojes snosue||aosIj\ =
pue ‘uoneinbyuodsal uonossIoU| =

:SJuswianosdwl ylemssolo pue dwes qunND =

'Seue| 9yIq pJepue]s pue paloyng =

(uoneoijdde jueib) syusuodwon ainoniselyu| — punoJabyoeg |



3o9foad yseanng Ajunwwoy pue Ayages S1HS (jog o

Aemesnib Joway yum o0epoy a|oAolg =
pue :dejy Bupjepp e dojersq =
:suoniedwod apim-sndwe)

:SJuane sheq [00Yos 0] Ylep) =

.uoneonp3 Ajajeg 9j0Aolg «

:uoijeanp3 Alajeg uelsepad =

(uoneoidde jueib) sjusuodwo) ainjonJiseljuj-uoN — _u::O..mv_Omm



yosload yoeasyng Aunwuwoy pue Ayases S1YS [2Q O

000'9¢$ - 24N19NNSEIU|-UON
000°2/L° 1S . UoIoNJSU0)
000°00L$ - Repn-10-1ubry

: (Ssjewns3
000 OFLS 8 suoljealioads ‘sueld) 3954

RS

: (JuswnooQ [eluswiUOIAUT
910230  00008$ - 8 [eAoiddy 198l01d) ATV

uoneaojy buipung — punoibyoeg




ﬁUO—.OLE
s yoseaain
N0 Ayunwwoy pue fo
Jes S1HS
l1eg ory

\\

o
G
i

Sruand
& el L anuany FOCROIA jo vosaemR!t 2y pue "3NUIRY woaa ouE ACTA 2uEs 0 uoRoISIA
aq 200N ey 13RS puet “anuaNy poOMAIM “pang SAEQ ~anuany menaied “pnusAY
poorPihh NS tuuds -suepaasiaw! pue SRS uporo) A o 100 0N 1© fyg ot o pareao! 5
(moleug) wolord grann0 fgunuuod BUE Koo (518} Joouss 0 SANOH jeg UL “wopsaan 1eiord
yea o i© [0} aueaiiddy yolord
\
\ ool peanto faunusnod e Rejes 100PS oy oY 2jes toMl yoeloid
79556 YO ‘yaQ 0y
K .r‘/.m“ N g pocMpiA SLO
Wb 1=l 120 o 10 4D wold
. b
—\—ND peQWnH i° unod WD P S
¥1858 V2 ‘oowesES
g wost 'PAUS uaL 0or 10
‘ouarIIes

on V856 Y2
V0e 1030
-

_ ya:easey Ut Euutid 10 o0 X K
HOlLWIX3 40 300N Y030

O WD

sdoysy. Juswidojeneq ubiseq =

MIOAN Alunwiwod / 21ig

Uol Nang =
.“—QEQXM JO @210\ — VOIS

JusaunNoo(
|ejuawiu
OJIAUT % Jenolddy 108loud
[oild — punoab
yoeg



}o3foid yseannp Munwwoy pue Kgajges S1ys ([od oy

(e1ep J9)E| B JE passaippe aq 0}) saue|
O)Iq 31 uey] Jayiel "eny poomplip) Buole yied asn-njnw ay) asn
0} (Jusuoduwiod |euolyeonps sy Jo ued se) sjuspnis abeinooug .

pue ‘(Jejiwis 4o) urelp youal} e Buippe Aq ony
POOMPJIM PUB "8AY malA9||2g Je ws|qoid abeulelp Aempeols Xi4

:OAIJolI1S8l
OS Jou pue uado uoloesiaju| Aep) O1USOS PUE “BAY eoj|g ayidosy

:S¥|emapis Buiisixa 0] 199UU0D 0] "aAY
E0[3 JO dpIs yuou sy} buole yjemapis (Jo 0G| Aleiewixoidde) ppy

19X\ DD BY) Jesu syjemapis Builsixe sy} 0] 108UU0D
0] "®AY 0|3 uo Alsisam (,0G A|gjewixoidde) S)|emepIs puaixg .

(Bunssw 410z ‘61 Jequeldeg Buinp j1ounog Aq payoauip se pue
sue|d 1deouo9 9%,0¢ 8y} Uo) SjUBWWOY dllgnd wouy Bunjnsay ®

suoisiAal Juswald ubisaqg

sjusWwwoy 2ljlgnd — puno.ibyoeg



3osfoid yseanno Munwwoy pue A3ages SIYS (o oY

2JNJONJNISEJJU|-UON

000°9¢$ -
000°2ZZL°LS -
\wSN sunf. 000°00L$ -
8L0z a4 000‘0¥L$ -
9L02120  000°089$ -

Aepp-jo-1ybiy

(sajewns]
B suoneoyIoads ‘sueld) 3Sd

WO (luswnao@ |eluswiuoIIAUg
porRI A roiddy olon) azevd

uoneoojly buipung — puno.abyoeg



303foud yseasynp Ajunwwon pue Ayages S1uS (e oy

(suesjed Aq pepuswiiodal) “any MaIAs|jog 0} Uo Aep\ OIUBDG/ Ay
POOMPJIAA WO} Bue| uin} Jybu pajesipap punoqyinos ay) ajeulwi|g

pue (ojgnd Aq pejsenbau pue sueijen Aq papuswiLioss.)
"OAY POOMPIIN PUB 8AY MBIAS||9g e pue|s] abnjas ueljsapad ey ajeulwi|g

:uondaox3 ubiseq e jwqgns
10 SpJEPUE]S }88W 0} ssediapun ay) yjeauaq sylemapls BulSIXs 1oNISUoIaY

{(90UBIRSD [ROILIOA WNWIUIW BY) J98W O] Aiessaosu) ssediapun ay) yjesuaq
Aep\\ 21UBDS/"aAY POOMPJIAA JO UoIuod auy) Buoje Aepeno pue puub yydap |in4

(8102 ‘€2 Iudy) suenjed yum suoissnasip woly Bupjnsay

(senssi Aem-jo-jybL pue aoueses)d jejuoziioy juealyjiubis) 009
Aj@rewixoidde Aq sjuswenoiduw any M3IAJ|[2g JO sl Aus1sam aonpay

(sjuswenoidwi pesodoud sy Jij 0}
ybnous spim jou si juswoened bursixs) Aepano pue Buiuspim any MBIA3||ag

Kenins ojydeiBodo) pue Atepunoq wouy Buigjnsay

_55-

@RETe

.
ORP

©)

suolsiAal Juswa|e ubisap jeuonippy

Juswdojeas ubiseq panunuos) — punouabyjoeg



3o0afoag yoranng Munwwog pue Ag3ayes SIS jlog oy

-56-

Tiag
£ O

‘9jeLWiSe Siy) Ul papnjoul jou sI ssediepun ay) ypesusq
pue joxIep DO 8y 0} Y[eMepIS [BUORIPPE B[ :8JON

8LL'vees - (¥ebpng 4eAQ)

8L1L'99Z°L$ sjewys s Jaauibug
000°2¥0°L$ uonodniIsuoy 10} sjqejieay
000°'GeLS - Buliesuibug uononssuon
000°LLL'L$ [EJ0] uoneso||y uoonisuod

06°2L1'99Z'L$ b _amoo uononysuoy [e1ol pejewlisy
SOGTeEETS  Aduasunuo) Sunewnsy %0C
GZ'860'G50°L$ [el01gns uojonlisuoo

Sjewnsy s.saulbug jeae ubiseq %09 — snjels juaiing



3o09foad yoranng Aunwwog pue Ag3ages S1yS |log oy

I8ljoue o0} eseyd auo wouj palisjsuel) aq o}
Spunj pesnun jo %0z o} dn 1oj smojje weibo.id ayj ‘Jonemoy
papuswiwiodal Jou S| spuny 41y [euonippe Bbuisanbay :0joN

BYI0 ¥

10 (2 1dO % 1 1dO) spun4 [eoo Buisn sabeiano
Jusws|ddns pue sjusuodwod jo8(oid aWwos 99npay ¢

‘Junowe pswwelbouid
UIYlIM utewsl 03 sjusuodwod j08foud eonpay ‘7

.Spunj |eo0 Buisn sabelano
jusws|ddns pue suejd ubisep jusind yum anunuon |

suondo — piemao 4 Buino



3oafoad yoeaunQ Ajunwwoy pue f3sges SIYS |log oy

'ssedispun ay} JSpun Y[eMapIS SU1 JONJJSU0D3) JOU O(]

pue 19ie
0D 3y} 01 Mlemapis jJo ,0G ppe 0} Isenbal ay) spnjoul jou oq

:M3IAB||2g uo adid ulelp pajesopad g syl sjeulwlg .

‘yjed asn-jjnw juaoelpe ‘Bunsixe ay) asn
O} JljjeJ} 9iq SbeINOdUS puB SAY POOMPIIAA UO SauUe| aYIq Sjeulwl| .

(guno
€ JNOYIM {7) WNWIUIW Y} 0} MBIAS|[2g UO UIPIM SUB| 9iq 80Npay]

1S JOAIY 1e Bulpus
OAY MdIAB||8g UO Jayuny uaAa syiwi| 1oofosd Apaisem 20Npay .

‘Auessaoau s| jeym 0) sbuppiew Juswsaned pue buidis aonpay .
[enuajod Buiney se payuapl usaq sAey
swa)l buimol|oy sy} ‘syusuodwios 108foid 8onpal 0} S| uoIsioap ay} Ji

suofelapisuo) uoido — piemio ] BuiAoy



399foid yseannp Munwwoy pue A3sjes SIMS |j9Q o1y

-59-

——

~ia
o

‘SpuNj UOIONIISUOD JO uonedoje Bunsanbal (Jo awi
SU} Je J0) 810joq papiwgns o }snw sjsanbai abueyo edoog .

pue .sjuswalinbal jeuonippe aainbai Aew pue onews|goid
o p|nod Aepp-jo-1ybry suene) ayy uiyim sebueyo adoog .

. ‘welboud
SU) WoJj |eaowal ui ynsal Aew syyauaq uonepodsuel)

SAlJ0e JO Bsealdsp e ul bunnsas sebueyo adoog, .

‘lenoidde Joy 5D 8y} 0)
Psniwgns sq pue ‘uofjejuswnoop Buiuoddns pue uonesisn|
opnjoul ‘Bunum ui pajsenbal aq }snw adoos ur sebueys ANV -

:paJepisuod aq pjnoys
Buimojos sy} ‘sjusuodwos jo8foid eonpai 0 S| UOISIDEP oyl J|

suopelspisuo) uopdo — piemio 4 BUuiAoy



309foad yorannp Munwwon pue A3ages S1YS 97 Oy

N
aulpeaq 000°9¢9$ - 94NJoNJISEU|-UON
6102 [dy i
gL0Z aunf  000'00LS - mmm»mo.,n, U\ Aepn-jo-1ybry
07 g8 ‘ . ul (se1ewns
gtocdsd 000 07L$ 5523008 Slioneonoads ‘subi) IRe
9L0Z190  000°'08% - cﬁ%eoo QURWEZRE [EIUBLIYOIAU

8 leAouddy Josloid) a39vd

uoneoo|y buipun4 — paemioq Buiroy




3o3foid yoeanng Ajunwwog pue A3ages SIYS [l2Q oY

.uoljed0||e punj uononJsuo) jsenbay ¢

-39S d 19A3] %001} UBY} pue ‘J8Sd [9A8] %06 a1o|dwo) “f

:suoeaiied Annn pue Aepp-jo-ybiy ejejdwon ¢

‘(popaau ale Aue J1) suondeoxg ubiseq Jwgng pue aledald 7

.dddMS/4aMS pue uodey abeuresq syo|dwo) |
:uona|dwod spiemoy Buissaiboid snunguon 7

:2doog ul 8buey) Joj 1senbai e ywgns pue aj9|dwos 'q
-8jeulw|g/eonpal 0} sjusuodwoo 198(oid yoaiym aulwlia)e(q ‘e
""" (Joalay] UoljeLIeA aW oS 10) SjuauodLio josfoud Buronpau Jj

usyj spunj ajgejiene
JO $S89X® Ul 1509 J98(oid yum Buiesp Joy uondo asooyn |

sdals 1xaN — piemioj Buirop



675 Wildwood Avenue

RIO
Rio Dell, CA 95562 _ DeLL

o SRS v RS AN ORI 5 - (o

(707) 764-3532

To:

From:

Through:

Date:

Subject:

For Meeting of: August 7, 2018
O Consent Item; M Public Hearing ltem

City Council

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director,‘//‘

"

Kyle Knopp, City Manager
July 30, 2018

A Text Amendment to the Community Commercial (CC) and Neighborhood
Center (NC) zones to allow residential uses on the upper floors of mixed use

buildings.

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1. Introduce (first reading) Ordinance No. 370-2018 amending the Community Commercial
(CC) and Neighborhood Center Regulations to allow residential uses on upper floors of

mixed use buildings; and

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; and

3. Continue consideration, approval and adoption of the proposed amendments to your

meeting of August 21, 2018.

Background

Staff is in the process of updating the City’s Housing Element and discovered that Policy A-12
and Legislative Action Item A-2 encourages mixed use development in commercial zones and

e ]

Mixed Use Amendments City Council August 7, 2018

62-



the necessary amendments to implement the Policy. The Town Center zone does allow
residential uses on the upper floors of mixed use buildings. The Community Commercial (CC)

and Neighborhood Center (NC) zones do not allow mixed uses.

Procedures for Zoning Ordinance Amendments

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance:

e An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning

Commission, or the City Council.
e The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment
shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing

fee.

e Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing.

e Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three

public places.

e At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

e Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore.

e Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council,
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as

provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof.

o At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof.

e The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council.

Mixed Use Amendments City Council August 7, 2018
-63-



Zone Reclassification Required Finding:

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected.

As indicated above, the Housing Element contains policies and action plans that actually require
the City to update the Zoning Regulations to allow residential uses on upper floors of mixed use
buildings. In addition, the Land Use Element actually identifies residential uses on upper floors

of mixed use buildings as permitted uses. Therefore, the recommended amendments are

consistent and compatible with the General Plan.

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is to inform the
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project.

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption is
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment,
the project is not subject to CEQA. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, staff
believes there is no evidence to suggest that the amendments will have a significant effect on

the environment.

Attachments:

Attachment 1: Draft Ordinance No. 370-2018 amending the Community Commercial (CC) and
Neighborhood Center (NC) zones to allow residential uses on the upper floors of
mixed use buildings, Sections 17.20.060 and 17.20.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal

Code.

T R R e T e S Y R T o S e S P S e ST L o T T B R T S e e A R T A T, S S A S T P S I T G T SR T G SO

Mixed Use Amendments City Council August 7, 2018

_64-



ORDINANCE NO. 370-2018

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL AMENDING
THE NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER (NC) AND COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (CC)
ZONES, SECTIONS 17.20.050 AND 17.20.060 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS staff is in the process of updating the City’s Housing Element; and

WHEREAS the current Housing Element contains policies and action plans that require the City
to update the Zoning Regulations to allow residential uses on upper floors of mixed use
buildings; and

WHEREAS the Land Use Element currently identifies residential uses on upper floors of mixed
use buildings as permitted uses in the Neighborhood Center (NC) and Community Commercial

(CC) land use designations; and

WHEREAS the City Council finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report
that the proposed amendments are consistent and compatible with a comprehensive view of
the General Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and

WHEREAS the City Council finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report
that the potential impacts of the proposed minor amendments have been assessed and have
been determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act

(CEQA); and

WHEREAS the City Council has determined that the proposed amendments are Statutorily
Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the

California Code of Regulations.

Mixed Use Text Amendments CC & NC Zones August 2018

-65-




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell:

1. Finds that the proposed amendments are in the public interest and consistent with an
overall comprehensive view of the General Plan; and

2, Finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that the potential
impacts of the proposed amendments have been assessed and have been determined

not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

3. Finds that based on the nature of the proposed amendments, the project is Statutorily
Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of
the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA
Guidelines this exemption is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to
projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment;

and

4, Approves and adopt Ordinance No. 366-2018 amending the City’s Flood Damage
Prevention Regulations, Section 15.15 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1

Section 17.20.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

17.20.050 Neighborhood Center or NC zone.

The neighborhood center or NC zone is intended to provide for small-scale shopping centers
located within neighborhoods which will provide convenient sales and service facilities to
residential areas, without detracting from the residential desirability of such areas. The
following regulations shall apply in all neighborhood center or NC zones:

(1) Principal Permitted Uses.

(a) Social halls, fraternal and social organizations and clubs, plant nurseries and greenhouses;

(b) Professional and business offices and commercial instruction;

(c) Stores, agencies and services of a light commercial character, conducted entirely within an
enclosed building, such as antique shops, art galleries, retail bakeries, banks, barber shops,
beauty salons, bookstores, clothing and apparel stores, coin-operated dry cleaning and
laundries, dry cleaning and laundry agencies, drug stores, florists, food markets, furniture

R e O e PR e

Mixed Use Text Amendments CC & NC Zones August 2018




stores, hardware and appliance stores, radio and television sales and services, restaurants and
licensed premises appurtenant thereto, automobile service stations and repair, studios, tailor

shops, enclosed theaters, and variety stores;
(d) Sales of used and secondhand goods, when appurtenant to any of the foregoing;

(e) Pet shops, public garages, sales of used or secondhand goods, and storage warehouses;

{f) Apartments on the upper floors of multistory buildings

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit.
(a) Boarding and rooming houses, and bed and breakfast inns in a mixed use building;

(b) Professional and business offices, health services, and commercial instruction when part of a
mixed use building;

(c) Small animal hospitals completely enclosed within a building;
(d) Civic and cultural uses including City offices and day care centers;

(e) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the

zone.
Section 2.
Section 17.20.060 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

17.20.060 Community Commercial or CC zone.

The purpose of the community commercial or CC zone is to provide for large-scale commercial
uses. The following regulations shall apply in all community commercial or CC zones:

(1) Principal Permitted Uses.
(a) Large-scale retail stores and retail services, including supermarkets;
(b) Automotive sales, automotive services contained entirely within a building, and gas stations;

(c) Light manufacturing contained entirely within a building;

(d) All uses permitted with a use permit in neighborhood center or NC zones, without regard to
the securing of any use permit, except as provided in subsection (2) of this section.

S O e S e
Mixed Use Text Amendments CC & NC Zones August 2018

_67-




(e) Apartments on the upper floors of multistory buildings

(2) Use Permitted with a Use Permit.
(a) Motels in a lodging building or in a mixed use building, RV parks;
(b) Small animal hospitals, completely enclosed within a building;

(c) Stores, agencies and services such as carpentry and cabinet-making shops, clothing
manufacture, contractors’ yards, dry cleaning and laundry plants, handicraft manufacture,
lumber yards, metalworking shops, wholesale outlet stores, painters’ and decorators’ yards,

plumbing shops, printing and lithographic;

(d) Civic and cultural uses including City offices and other government services and City parking
facilities.

(e) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in
the zone.

Section 3. Severability

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 4. Limitation of Actions

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of

this ordinance.

Section 5. CEQA Compliance

The City Council has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from review
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), subject to Section 15061(b)(3) of the
CEQA Guidelines. Due to the nature of the proposed code revisions, there is no evidence that
any significant impact to the environment would occur as a result of adoption of the

Ordinance.
Section 6. Effective Date

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption.

B T e e e e Ve e S e e S e B e R R

Mixed Use Text Amendments CC & NC Zones August 2018

-68-




I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on August 7, 2018 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio
Dell, held on the August 21, 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Frank Wilson, Mayor

ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 370-2018 which was passed,
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on

August 21, 2018.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell

mﬁ
-69-

Mixed Use Text Amendments CC & NC Zones August 2018




